

BEAVER ISLAND HISTORICAL SOCIETY BYLAWS REVISED AND AMENDED AUGUST 19, 2021

Article I - NAME AND PURPOSE

Section 1 - NAME

The name of the organization shall be the Beaver Island Historical Society of Michigan. It shall be a non-profit corporation, incorporated under the laws of the State of Michigan and qualified as a 501(c)3 organization under Internal Revenue Regulations.

Section 2 - PURPOSE

The purpose of the Society is to preserve and share the unique history of Beaver Island and the archipelago.

Article II – MEMBERSHIP, MEETINGS, AND VOTING

Section 1 – MEMBERSHIP

Any person, firm, partnership, corporation or other association who applies for membership and pays the annual dues or is an honorary member and abides by the Bylaws of this Society shall be a member. Any member other than an individual shall designate one representative to act on its behalf including any voting at elections or on other matters. Honorary membership shall be bestowed by majority vote at an annual meeting, upon nomination by the Board of Trustees.

Section 2 – ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of the general membership shall be on Beaver Island, on the third (3rd) Thursday in August each year unless posted otherwise. The date, time and place shall also be posted in at least two (2) public places thirty (30) days prior to the meeting. The notice shall include mention of the nomination and election of Trustees to fill the expiring terms and any vacated term(s).

The order of business at the annual meeting shall be:

- a. Sign-in of members and establishment of a quorum as set in Article II, Section 5.
- b. Reading and approval of minutes of prior annual meeting
- c. Reports of officers and Executive Director The use of "managing Director" shall be changed to "Executive Director" throughout the Bylaws.
- d. Nomination and election of Trustees
- e. Unfinished business
- f. Public comment
- g. New business
- h. Adjournment

Section 3 – SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the membership may be called by the president; upon instruction of the Board of Trustees; or upon written request of a quorum of members in good standing. The purpose of the requested special meeting must be stated. When a special meeting is called, notice must be served upon each member, by electronic mail, not less than twenty (20) days prior to the meeting stating time, place, and purpose of the meeting.

Section 4 – VOTING AT ANNUAL OR SPECIAL MEETING MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

To be eligible to vote a member, or designee in the case of non-individual membership, must be present. Each person so present shall be entitled to one vote. No proxy or absentee voting will be permitted except when voting on amendment(s) to these Bylaws. A simple majority of those present is required for election or passing a motion except for amending these Bylaws as provided in Article V, Section 2.

Section 5 - QUORUM

A quorum at any meeting of the membership shall consist of fifteen (15) members. In the event a quorum is not present, the meeting may be adjourned by the president until a quorum is present; adjourn to a date within ten (10) days; or call for another meeting with notice as provided in these bylaws.

Article III - BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1 – GOVERNING BODY

The government of the Society shall be vested in a Board of Trustees, consisting of not less than five (5) nor more than thirteen (13) members, the exact number to be determined by the membership at an annual meeting or special meeting called for that purpose. The Board of Trustees shall elect officers of the Society with duties as provided in these Bylaws. The Board of Trustees shall have full authority and responsibility for the management of the Society and its programs and shall make all rules and regulations consistent with law for the management of the organization of the Society and the guidance of the officers, members and agents of the Society. It shall cause proper records and accounts to be kept for all activities, meetings, and

income and expenditures of the Society. The Board shall have full responsibility for control over the financial affairs and ethical standards of the Society.

Section 2 – QUALIFICATIONS, ELECTION AND TERM

Each Trustee shall be a member in good standing at election and throughout his or her term. The election of Trustees is held during the annual meeting of the membership. The Board shall present a slate of qualified Trustee nominees at the annual meeting. Nominations may also be made from the floor. Trustees are elected for three (3) year terms with the terms staggered on a three-year rotation. A Trustee who has been elected for three (3) consecutive terms (nine (9) years), shall not be nominated nor appointed unless one year has elapsed from the end of his or her last term and the date of appointment.

Any Trustee absent from fifty percent (50%) or more of the Trustee meetings held between May 1 and November 1 of any year shall be deemed to have resigned from the Board. Such Trustee may be reinstated by a vote of the Board. Board members shall serve without compensation. A paid employee of the Society shall not be eligible to serve as a Trustee.

Section 3 - REMOVAL OF TRUSTEE

A Trustee may be removed by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of members present at any regular meeting or special meetings of the membership called for the purpose, provided the membership is notified of the removal issue not less than twenty (20) days prior to the meeting. If a Trustee is removed under this section, an election shall immediately be held to fill the unexpired term of the removed Trustee, following the terms of Section 2 above.

Section 4 – VACANCIES

Vacancies caused by any reason other than the removal by vote of the membership shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining Trustees. The vacancy shall be posted in at least two (2) public places thirty (30) days prior to the Board's vote. The Nomination Committee shall interview candidates and its recommendation given to the Board prior to voting. Each person so elected shall serve until the next annual meeting of the membership when an election by the membership will be held to fill the unexpired vacated term.

Section 5 – MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the third (3rd) Thursday of the months, May through October and at other times during the year as called by the president with ten (10) days' notice. Teleconference and/or Zoom Conference meetings participation are permitted in lieu of in-person meetings. Hybrids between in-person meetings and teleconference and/or Zoom meeting participation are also permitted. Board members are to be notified of the hour and place at least three (3) days before a regular meeting (May through October). Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order. A quorum must be present to conduct business. A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of the then Board membership.

If an important Society issue develops needing resolution by the Board, usually relative to a time sensitive deadline, and a meeting/quorum is not available, the President can authorize

the issuance of an electronic mail to all Board Members. The email will describe the issue, offer a motion, request a second motion, and then seek subsequent Trustee voting.

Section 6 – INDEMNIFICATION OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

The Society shall, to the extent legally permissible, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless each person who may serve or who has served at any time as an officer, Trustee, Executive Director, or employee of the Society against all expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation, counsel fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes, penalties and settlement payments, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon such person in connection with any pending or completed action, suit or proceeding in which he or she may become involved by reason of his or her service in such capacity; provided that no indemnification shall be provided for any such person with respect to any matter as to which he or she shall have been finally adjudicated in any proceeding not to have acted in good faith in the reasonable belief that such action was in the best interests of the Society or in which he or she acted illegally or with gross negligence; and further provided that any compromise or settlement payment shall be approved by a majority vote of a quorum of directors.

The indemnification provided hereunder shall insure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of persons entitled to indemnification hereunder. The right of indemnification under this Article shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other rights to which any person may be entitled.

No amendment or repeal of the provisions of this Article which adversely affects the right of an indemnified person under this Article shall apply to such person with respect to those acts or omissions which occurred at any time prior to such amendment or repeal, unless such amendment or repeal was voted by or was made with the written consent of such indemnified person.

This Article constitutes a contract between the Society and the indemnified officers, Trustees, Executive Director and employees. No amendment or repeal of the provisions of this Article which adversely affects the right of an indemnified officer, Trustee, Executive Director, or employee under this Article shall apply to such officer, Trustee, Executive Director, or employee with respect to those acts or omissions which occurred at any time prior to such amendment or repeal.

Article IV - OFFICERS

Section 1 – TITLES AND QUALIFICATIONS

The officers shall consist of a president, vice-president, secretary and treasurer. Additional vice-presidents may be elected if deemed necessary. The president may not hold any other office. One individual may hold any two of the remaining three (3) offices. The president and vice-president(s) must be elected Board members. The secretary and treasurer positions may be elected from the general membership.

Section 2 - ELECTION AND TERMS

The officers are elected by the Board at the first meeting held after the annual meeting, usually held immediately following the annual meeting. They are elected for a term of one (1) year and serve until the close of the meeting where their successors are elected. A president or vice-president who has served for five (5) consecutive terms (years) may not be elected to the same office unless a period of one (1) year has elapsed from the end of his or her fifth year.

Section 3 – SPECIFIC DUTIES OF OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

PRESIDENT

The president shall perform all acts and duties usually performed by an executive officer, and shall:

- a. Preside over all meeting of the Board of Trustees and of the membership
- b. Call special meetings of the Board of Trustees or of the membership
- c. Sign such documents, contracts and papers as may be appropriate with authority granted by the Board of Trustees.
- d. Serve as ex-officio member of all committees
- e. Appoint ad hoc committees

VICE-PRESIDENT

The vice-president shall act as president in the president's absence and shall perform other duties as prescribed by the Board.

SECRETARY

The secretary shall:

Keep, or cause to be kept, minutes of all meetings of the Board and of the membership and report on such minutes as necessary

- a. Maintain all official files and records of the Society other than financial
- b. Sign documents and correspondence as appropriate
- c. Record, or cause to recorded, the annual dues collected.
- d. Post public notice for Annual Meeting as set in Section II, Section 2.

TREASURER

The treasurer shall:

- a. Be responsible for all financial records of the Society
- b. Account for all income and expenditures
- c. Report the financial condition of the Society to the membership and Board at all meetings
- d. Deposit, or cause to be deposited, all monies collected in a reliable bank in the name of the Society
- e. Pay, or cause to be paid, all valid expenses of the Society by issuing a check or authorizing electronic drafts
- f. Be responsible for the preparation, or ensuring a qualifying entity prepares, and filing of all tax returns

g. Prepare and submit to the Board complete financial statements as of the close of the fiscal year

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board of Trustees may hire an Executive Director. If compensated, he or she shall not be a member of the Board of Trustees nor an officer.

The Executive Director shall:

- a. Be responsible for the day-to-day operations of the museums and other properties
- b. Carry-out such other duties as directed by the Board of Trustees
- c. Be responsible for the filing of all state and federal licenses

Article V - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1 – FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Society shall begin November 1 and end October 31.

Section 2 - AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of members present or voting by proxy at any regular meeting or special meetings of the membership called for the purpose, provided the amendment is submitted by electronic mail to the membership fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting. The prohibition against voting by proxy is waived for the purpose of this section only.

Section 3 - DUES

Membership dues shall be established and announced by the Board of Trustees and shall be for the calendar year. The Board shall establish Dues categories, including but not limited to: Student/Senior; Individual; Couples; Family; Sustaining; Benefactor; Corporate. Other categories may be established at the discretion of the Board.

Section 4 - COMMITTEES

The Board will oversee five main committees. Each committee will be chaired by a board member. Other committee members can be filled by members of the society. The board may establish and disband committees as needed to support the work of the Society.

- 1. Finance Committee will oversee or perform as noted:
 - a. Budget
 - b. Financial transactions
 - c. Tracking
 - d. Purchase order/work orders
 - e. Process bills paid accounts

- f. Act as an Investment Committee
- g. Review the results of the Audit committee
- h. Complete tax forms
- i. Update financial profiles

- 2. **Maintenance Committee** will oversee or perform as noted:
 - a. Interior and exterior of all buildings, property, and signage
 - b. Landscaping short and long-term plan
 - c. Regular maintenance and inspection of all buildings
- 3. Marketing Committee will oversee or perform as noted:
 - a. Create a brand
 - b. Publicity for all events

- c. Programming for the Museum
- d. Marketing Media
- 4. **Museum Operations Committee** will oversee or perform as noted:
 - a. Oral Histories
 - b. Grants
 - c. Archival Management
 - d. Exhibits
 - e. Gift Shop

- f. Genealogy
- G. Collections: Maintain accessions or deaccessions for new or current artifacts
- 5. **Development Committee** will oversee or perform as noted:
 - a. Fundraising for specific purposes and projects
- b. Membership

Section 5 - TERMINATION AND DISSOLUTION

In the event the Society shall be unable to maintain its facilities or to sustain its activities the Board may vote to dissolve the organization. Upon such vote or upon involuntary dissolution, the Board shall satisfy all liabilities and obligations with all remaining assets distributed jointly to Peaine Township and St. James Township.

Note: These revised Bylaws supersede prior Bylaws, including those that were last revised on August 17, 2017.